
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
                                                                      

Agenda 



 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

CITY OF CARLSBAD  
BUDGET COMMITTEE  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

A G E N D A 
Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex, Council Chambers 

114 South Halagueno  
Carlsbad, New Mexico 

Friday, April 12, 2024 at 3:30pm 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 

4. Consider Approval of Minutes of Budget Committee Meeting held on March 22, 2024 
 

5. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Annual Funding Requests from Outside Agencies 
       

a. Affirming Heart Victim Services 
b. Boys & Girls Club 
c. Carlsbad Battered Families Shelter 
d. Carlsbad Chamber-Retirement 
e. Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce 
f. Carlsbad Community Coalition-Teen Court 
g. Carlsbad Community of Hope Center 
h. Carlsbad MainStreet 
i. Carlsbad Transitional Housing & Homeless Shelter 
j. Eddy Lea Energy Alliance 
k. Pecos Valley Drug Taskforce 
l. SENMEDD 
m. Southeast NM Community Action Corporation 
n. Carlsbad Municipal Schools 

 
     6.   Adjourn 
 
 
       
If you require hearing interpreters, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate in the above 
meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting time. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

Budget Meeting 
Minutes 

 



 

1 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD 
BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 

Friday, March 22, 2024 AT 3:30 PM 
IN THE PLANNING ROOM AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING,  

101 N. HALAGUENO, CARLSBAD, NM 
 

Voting Members Present: Jason Chavez         Chairman/City Councilor       
Edward Rodriguez  City Councilor       
Jeff Forrest   City Councilor    (via phone) 
Mark Walterscheid                      City Councilor   
           

Also Present:   Wendy Austin   City Administrator (Interim) 
     KC Cass   Deputy City Administrator 
     Shane Skinner   Chief of Police 
     Pat Cass                                     Director of Public Works 
     Trysha Ortiz                                Deputy Director of Planning & Regulation 
                                                                 Wayne Hatfield                           Director of Information Technology 
     Ken Ahrens   Chief of Fire 
     Ivan Abell   Director of Utilities 
     Edward Vanscotter  Director of Museum 
     John Majerus   Assistant Chief of Fire 
     Jeff Patterson   Director of Planning & Regulations 
     Collis Johnson   Municipal Judge           
                                                                 Jessica Ponce   Budget/Grant Analyst 
     Cynthia Aranda   Executive Finance Secretary 
     Sandy Gonzalez  Deputy Finance Director 
     Beverly Allen   Chevron     
               
      
Absent:    Melissa Salcido   Director of Finance 
     Cynthia Aranda   Finance Executive Secretary   
    
      

   
00:00:04 1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
Budget Committee Chairman Jason Chavez called the meeting to order. 
 
00:00:30 2. ROLL CALL OF VOTING MEMBERS AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Interim City Administrator Mrs. Austin called roll and it was determined by Chairman Jason Chavez that there was a 
Quorum of the Voting Members. 
Present: Chairman Jason Chavez, Councilor Edward Rodriguez, Councilor Jeff Forrest (via phone), and Councilor Mark 
Walterscheid 
 
Absent: None 
 
00:00:41 3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The motion was made by Councilor Mark Walterscheid and seconded by Councilor Edward Rodriguez to approve the 
March 22, 2024 Budget Committee Meeting Agenda. 
 
The Vote was as follows: 
Yes:  Chavez, Rodriguez, Forrest, and Walterscheid  
No: None 
Absent: None 
 



 

2 
 

00:00:55 4. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
FEBRUARY 23, 2024. 
 
The motion was made by Councilor Edward Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Mark Walterscheid to approve the 
February 23, 2024 Budget Committee Meeting Minutes. 
 
The Vote was as follows: 
Yes:  Chavez, Rodriguez, Forrest, and Walterscheid 
No: None 
Absent: None 
 
00:01:17    5.  FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
Mrs. Austin reviewed the GRT’s and the Ending Unrestricted Cash Balance as of March 2023 with the Budget Committee. 
 
No Vote Required 
 
00:00:56    6.  DIRECTOR BUDGET PRESENTATIONS 
 
Mrs. Austin asked that each director present their requests for labor, operating and capital for the upcoming fiscal year 
2025 budget. Judge Collis Johnson reviewed the requests in the Municipal Court department. Mr. Wayne Hatfield 
reviewed the requests in the Information Technology department. Mrs. Sandy Gonzalez reviewed the requests in the 
Finance department. Mr. Shane Skinner reviewed the requests in the Police department. Mr. Ken Ahrens reviewed the 
requests in the Fire department. Mr. Pat Cass reviewed the requests in the Streets, Parks, Community Services, Garage, 
Electrical and Construction departments; he also reviewed the requests in the Municipal Transit Fund. Mr. KC Cass 
reviewed the requests in the Community Development, Library, Performing Arts, Airport, Riverwalk Recreation, Golf 
Maintenance, North Mesa Senior Center, Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center and Facility Maintenance departments; he also 
reviewed the requests in the Pro Shop Fund.  Mr. Cass requested that Mr. Edward Vanscotter present the requests for the 
Museum department. Mr. Jeff Patterson reviewed the requests in the Planning & Regulations department. Mr. Ivan Abell 
reviewed the requests in the Water & Sewer Fund and the Solid Waste Fund.  
 
No Vote Required 
 
02:18:43    7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUESTS 
 
Mrs. Austin requested that Mrs. Ponce, Budget/Grant Analyst review the Insurance Fund budget adjustment request.  Mr. 
Skinner, Chief of Police reviewed the Public Safety projects. Mr. Ahrens, Chief of Fire reviewed the Fire department 
budget adjustment requests. Mr. Patterson, Director of Planning & Regulations reviewed the Municipal Court budget 
adjustment request. Mrs. Jessica Ponce, Budget/Grant Analyst reviewed the Emergency Medical Services Fund request.  
Mrs. Austin asked Ms. Beverly Allen from Chevron to review the donation made for the “Keep Carlsbad Beautiful” and the 
Economic Impact Study for a possible recycling center.  Mrs. Austin reviewed the CDBG Fund request and Mrs. Ponce 
reviewed the Lodgers’ Tax-Promotional Fund requests. 
 

1. Insurance Fund – Increase Revenues by $19,328.38 for an insurance settlement check received for an accident 
involving a police vehicle. 

2. Insurance Fund – Transfer Out $19,328.38 to the General Fund for the insurance settlement check received for 
an accident involving a police vehicle. 

3. General Fund/Public Safety – Transfer In $19,328.38 from the Insurance Fund, and Increase Capital $19,328.38 
to the police vehicles project by the settlement amount received from the insurance for a totaled vehicle. 

4. General Fund/Public Safety – Increase Revenues & Capital by $10,000.00 for donations from XTO Energy, this 
will be used to purchase an applicant tracking and recruiting software for the Police department. 

5. General Fund/Public Safety – Increase Capital by $930,000.00 to purchase 10 police vehicles.  
6. General Fund/Public Safety – Increase Labor by $36,574.92 to add an information systems manager in the Police 

department. 
7. General Fund/Public Safety – Increase Capital by $100,000.00 for a digital sign for public safety announcements, 

we are searching for grant/donations. 
8. General Fund/Fire – Increase Revenues & Operating by $2,500.00 for donation from Solaris to be used to 

purchase equipment for the Fire department. 
9. General Fund/Fire – Increase Revenues & Operating by $5,000.00 for donation from Marathon Petroleum 

Corporation to be used to purchase equipment for the Fire department. 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
10. General Fund/Fire – Increase Capital by $90,000.00 to purchase a 2023 Chevrolet Tahoe for the Fire department, 

this includes the upfit. 
11. General Fund/Municipal Court – Increase Capital by $25,000.00 to add an entry vestibule to enable protected 

circulation of judicial staff into the courtroom. 
12. General Fund – Transfer Out $1,674.45 to the EMS fund. 
13. Emergency Medical Services Fund – Transfer In $1,674.45 from the General Fund to be able to return funds from 

fiscal year 2023 to the NM Department of Health EMS Bureau. 
14. Beautification Fund – Increase Revenues & Operating by $20,000.00 for a donation from Chevron to “Keep 

Carlsbad Beautiful” to support the youth community clean-up projects. 
15. CDBG Fund – Increase Revenues by $75,000.00 for a NM DFA grant to offset the City’s match requirement with 

state funding for the recently accepted Community Development Block Grant. 
16. Lodgers’ Tax-Promotional Fund – Increase Operating by $26,300.00 for the Carlsbad Automotive Restoration 

Society-Car-A-Fair Advertising. 
17. Lodgers’ Tax-Promotional Fund – Increase Operating by $3,000.00 for the Carlsbad Community Theatre-Tourism 

Campaign Advertising. 
18. Lodgers’ Tax-Promotional Fund – Increase Operating by $24,000.00 for the Carlsbad Community of Hope-Jericho 

Walk Advertising. 
19. Lodgers’ Tax-Promotional Fund – Increase Operating by $19,185.81 for the Carlsbad Gem & Mineral Society-

Gem & Mineral Show Advertising. 
20. Solid Waste Fund – Increase Revenues & Operating by $60,000.00 for a donation from Chevron to support an 

economic impact study for a potential cardboard recycling center. 
 
 
The motion was made Councilor Edward Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Mark Walterscheid to approve the Budget 
Adjustment Requests. 
 
The Vote was as follows: 
Yes: Chavez, Rodriguez, Forrest, and Walterscheid  
No: None 
Absent: None 
 
 
02:41:14      8.  REVIEW INCREASE AND DECREASE BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 
 
Mrs. Ponce reviewed the FY23/24 Increase/Decrease budget adjustments with the Budget Committee.   
 
No Vote Required 
 
 
02:42:46       9.  ADJOURN 
 
The motion was made by Councilor Mark Walterscheid and seconded by Councilor Edward Rodriguez to Adjourn. 
The Vote was as follows: 
Yes: Chavez, Rodriguez, Forrest, and Walterscheid  
No: None 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 
 
         ___________________________ 
         Chairman 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

                                                                      

Outside Agency 
Requests 



City of Carlsbad
Outside Agency Requests
FY25

Outside Agency Requests FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24
FY25 

Request Approved 

Affirming Heart Victim Services 20,000     20,000      20,000      20,000      20,000      25,000      

Boys & Girls Club 51,000     58,000      65,000      70,000      75,000      75,000      

Carlsbad Battered Families Shelter -                -                -                -                -                30,000      

Carlsbad Chamber - Retirement 45,000     44,250      44,250      44,250      46,462      46,462      

Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce -                -                -                -                -                110,000   

Carlsbad Community Coalition- Teen Court 24,000     24,000      24,000      24,000      24,000      24,000      

Carlsbad Community of Hope Center 18,000     24,000      24,000      28,800      30,240      40,000      

Carlsbad MainStreet 72,000     68,250      60,000      90,000      90,000      90,000      

Carlsbad Transitional Housing & Homeless Shelter 32,000     32,000      32,000      36,000      40,000      60,000      

Eddy Lea Energy Alliance 40,000     25,000      25,000      25,000      25,000      25,000      

Pecos Valley Drug Taskforce -                -                -                -                -                25,000      

SENMEDD 7,641       7,641        7,641        7,641        7,641        7,641        

Southeast NM Community Action Corporation 10,500     15,000      15,000      20,000      20,000      60,000      

664,141   603,341   571,091   622,051   672,343   618,103   -                

Carlsbad Municipal Schools 

Natatorium 20,000     20,000      13,000      13,000      13,000      13,000      

Summer Recreation Program 15,000     15,000      15,000      15,000      15,000      15,000      

Youth Citizenship 7,000       7,000        7,000        7,000        7,000        7,000        

Tutoring Program 25,000     25,000      25,000      30,000      30,000      30,000      

121,000   121,000   60,000      119,000   65,000      65,000      

Totals 785,141   724,341   631,091   741,051   737,343   683,103   -                

GENERAL FUND



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOD President
Mike Walker

BOD Vice-President
Matt Hutchinson

BOD Treasurer
Tabatha Co�ey

BOD Secretary
Amy Dugas

BOD Members
Shane Skinner
Rick Lopez

Executive Director
Zelma Lopez

Clinical Coordinator
Brandy Ackland

Medical Director
Kim Hansen

Proud Member of

March 3, 2024

Dear City Funding Committee,

A�rming Heart Victim Services would like to request continued city funding of
$20,000 to support the programs we o�er and would request an increase of $5000
to support the growth of our services in FY25 - bringing our FY25 request to
$25,000..

Over the years our agency has grown. We now employ 20 citizens including a
nurse, advocates, child interviewers, counselors, shelter sta�, a case manager, a
data tracker, a parent coach, and a transportation driver.

In 2023 we worked with 67 child abuse victims and their family members;
advocates delivered 762 services including language assistance, crime victim
compensation applications, order of protection assistance, court accompaniment
and follow-up and referrals to mental health and medical services; 27 adults were
seen for a sexual assault or domestic violence medical exam; 27 youth were
sheltered at the Foundry Home; 805 mental health sessions were provided at no
cost; and 14 families participated in our visitation and parent coaching program.

We continually work to fill gaps in services in Eddy County, so over the next year,
with help from a rural healthcare delivery fund grant, we will be purchasing a
vehicle to o�er community members transportation to/from mental health
appointments in an e�ort to reduce barriers to this essential service. This new
program will be called CareCab and has a tentative start date of late-March.

We look forward to continuing to serve our community and we greatly appreciate
the support we receive from the City of Carlsbad.

Sincerely,

Zelma Lopez
Executive Director
Forensic Interviewer, CART Coordinator, Prevention/Outreach Specialist
zelma@a�rmingheart.com
Fax: 575-800-0630
Mailing: PO Box 1441, Carlsbad, NM 88221

Cavern City Lea Co SPEAK Foundry Home Rise Up Stepping Stones
Child Advocacy Center Child Advocacy Center SA/DV Program Youth Shelter Counseling Parent Support
2319 W Pierce 114 W Snyder 2319 W Pierce 2317 Jackson 2319 W Pierce Carlsbad, NM
Carlsbad, NM Hobbs, NM Carlsbad, NM Carlsbad, NM Carlsbad, NM Hobbs, NM
575-200-3929 575-964-2064 575-303-7070 888-808-2775 575-200-3929 575-573-3100

EIN: 47-3442188 CRS: 03-318546-00-8 www.affirmingheart.com

mailto:zelma@affirmingheart.com


1,689,282$        798,233$                390,321$                500,494$              

INCOME

A
m

o
u

n
t

EXPENSES Amount Description

SPECIFIC to 

Eddy Co Programs
(Includes Gen & ADMIN 

Costs)

SPECIFIC to

Lea Co. Programs

SPECIFIC to

Foundry Home 

Youth Shelter

CAC Grant 239,735$            Salary and Wages 960,401$            

Administration

CAC: FI's, VA's

SPEAK: Nurse, VA's

Rise Up: Therapists, Interns, Parent Coachs

Foundry Home: Shelter Manager, Floor Staff

405,018.20$           $          262,107.20  $        293,275.60 

VOCA  FFY23 61,619$              Payroll Taxes 80,242$              
Employer

FICA, SUTA, WC
34,213.00$            22,123.00$            23,671.00$           

VOCA  FFY24 166,194$            Benefits 32,639$              
IRA - .03 of Salaries

Insurance Stipends
12,544.00$             $            10,587.00  $             9,508.00 

DV Grant 30,000$              Payroll Expenses 6,337$                Intuit, Tsheets 2,535.00$              2,091.00$              1,711.00$             

AODA 13,500$              Contract Personnel 15,050$              
Medical Director

Clinical Coun/SW Supervisor(s)

SANE/DV Nurse
11,050.00$             $              4,000.00  $ -   

UW Eddy Co - Foundry Home

CY23-$9,375, CY24-$10,000
9,375$                Building, Prop Taxes 170,900$            

Shelter Lease, Lea Co Building

Carlsbad/Hobbs  Prop Tax
68,900.00$             $            42,000.00  $           60,000.00 

UW Lea Co - Stepping Stones 6,150$                Utilities 19,372$              Water, Gas, Electric 4,500.00$               $              4,000.00  $           10,872.00 

Eddy County  20,000$              Communications 21,860$              
On-Call, Telephone, Internet, 

Mighty Call Hotlines
13,454.00$             $              5,508.00  $             2,898.00 

Lea County 60,000$              Subcriptions, Fees, Dues 23,229$              
Payroll, 10to8, SimpliSafe, Doxy, Netflix, 

NCAtrak, NMCA, NCA, HMIS, 

TherapyNotes
10,854.50$             $            10,854.50  $             1,520.00 

City of Carlsbad 20,000$              Professional Services 10,800$              Audit, Bookkeeping, Notary 6,800.00$               $              2,000.00  $             2,000.00 

City of Hobbs 5,000$                
BOD/Staff/Volunteer/M

DT Development
3,800$                Sunshine Committee 3,075.00$               $ 325.00  $                400.00 

Basic Center Program 161,889$            
Maintenance & Repair

Capital Outlay
151,126$            80,676.00$             $ 450.00  $           70,000.00 

CYFD Shelter Funding 350,000$            Victim Services Fund 6,885$                1,385.00$               $              2,000.00  $             3,500.00 

CYFD Protective Services 80,000$              
Program Specific 

Supplies
42,322$              

Prevention, SWAG,  SENMCAC 

Conference, Foundry Home
30,322.00$             $              5,000.00  $             7,000.00 

DOH COVID Funds 16,000$              General Office Supplies 7,186$                2,874.00$               $              2,874.00  $             1,438.00 

CYFD Enhanced Visitation 81,600$              
Marketing Info and 

Program Materials
16,262$              

Outreach, SENMCAC Conference 

Advertising/Hosting
11,262.33$             $              2,500.00  $             2,500.00 

CVRC Reimb: 6875 AP, 625 CAC 9,375$                PO Box, Postage 273$  273.00$                   $ -    $ -   

NMSCAP: 6300 Nurse 12,330$              Insurance 29,753$              
Cavern City CAC, Lea Co CAC, Foundry 

Home, Vehicle, Notary, WC
13,352.00$             $              8,901.00  $             7,500.00 

CJAGG Grant 23,000$              
Service Animal 

Expenses
1,957$                Service Animals 757.00$                   $ -    $             1,200.00 

SAS Grant 134,000$            CAC Employee Expenses 14,724$              
Mileage, Meals, Lodging, 

Registration
10,224.00$             $              3,000.00  $             1,500.00 

SASP Grant 24,515$              Savings 74,164$              74,164.00$            

SVPP 18,000$              

Firework Stand 12,000$              

Fundraising/Donor/Citations 25,000$              

BILLING REVENUE (Tentative) -$  

Affirming Heart Victim Services 

FY24  Budget

























Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce
Convention Center & Visitor Bureau

                 302 S Canal Street
                                                                                       Carlsbad, NM 88220

                                                                     Phone: 575-887-6516

March 12, 2024

Mayor Rick Lopez 
Wendy Austin, City Administrator
Budget Committee
City of Carlsbad
PO Box 1569
Carlsbad, NM 88220

RE: Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Request for the Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce

Mr. Mayor, Mrs. Austin, and members of the Committee

Over the last three years the Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce has increased what I like to call our 
development footprint throughout the community of Carlsbad.  The Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce is 
unique among chambers due to the larger involvement that we have throughout many areas of our City.   
The Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce is focused on working with the City to develop, advocate, gather 
funds and execute initiatives.  The Carlsbad Chamber works throughout the year meeting with 
legislatures, members of congress and other influential individuals to ensure Carlsbad is at the forefront 
of individuals’ thoughts.  We have advocated for WIPP, roads, job creation and more.    Additionally, the 
Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce manages and partners with the City regarding:

Manage the Mayors Development Fund
Host the Eddy County Reception
Host NWP and SIMCO events
Mayor’s Energy Summit
4th of July planning
Business recruitment in partnership with CDOD
Host Dignitaries when they come to town.
Partner with Senior Recreation Centers to help with travel for certain groups to further those groups 
options for competition.
Operate new digital signs once complete.  Manage content and graphics.

We are also the home of the Chamber Ambassadors which alone offer more than 500 hours of 
volunteering throughout Carlsbad.  These individuals are strictly volunteers, but they are active within 
the community and work hard on behalf of this City.  With a volunteer group such as this, it requires 
commitment and financial backing to make sure things happen.  We have plans to outfit them and the 
Government Council so they are more recognized and can be more effective in promoting Carlsbad.  

We appreciate your assistance in helping us tell the economic story of Carlsbad. 



Mayors Development fund (restricted) $35,000.00
Operational Funds Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce               $65,000.00
Total Request $110,000.00
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

Thank you! 

Chad E Ingram 
Chief Executive Officer

































Carlsbad Transitional Housing and Homeless Shelter 
502 S. Halagueno St., Carlsbad, NM  88220  
Phone:  (575)200-3095 Email:  team@cthhs.org 
 

Board of Directors: 
Lee Post, President—Andrea Kelly, Vice President—Jenny Sims, Secretary/Treasurer 

Rod Hurst—Chito Aguilar—Mike Owens—Brian McGonagill—Crystal Jones—Sarah Jones 
Maaike Thomas—Jeannie Watson 

 

2025 Request for Funding 

Carlsbad Transitional Housing and Homeless Shelter (CTHHS) is a faith-based, community-oriented 
organization providing safe, secure, and sanitary housing for families and individuals experiencing 
economic, personal and/or family hardship.  We were incorporated as a 501(c) (3) non-profit in 1999 
and represent a coalition of Carlsbad churches, and we are also a partner agency with United Way of  
Eddy County. 

Safe and secure housing is a very basic need and one that is essential for individuals if they are going to 
thrive in our society.  CTHHS serves a population that is struggling for their basic needs to be met.  
Housing, regardless of the quality, is extraordinarily difficult for many in our area to secure.  This 
situation has been compounded exponentially in recent years as the oil industry has moved into the 
region.  By offering two forms of housing to our community, we are providing a much-needed service 
and are empowering these individuals to move forward with their lives in a more positive and powerful 
way. 

CTHHS owns five single-family, furnished homes. It takes countless hours of our staff and volunteers to 
maintain these properties for our client families. The Transitional Housing program provides people with 
help after a crisis that involves homelessness.  The crisis may come from domestic violence, illness, 
financial issues, natural disaster or other personal crisis.  Transitional Housing provides structure and 
support to assist residents in achieving educational, career, and financial goals, while living in clean and 
stable housing.  The program provides for twelve to eighteen months for applicants that are willing to 
work with a mentor and the CTHHS staff on life skills and other areas appropriate for each individual 
resident.  Regular visits are made by each resident’s mentor as well as the housing supervisor of the 
program.  Residents pay rent on a sliding scale and are all employed or going to school full time.  Our 
referrals come from the community such as Carlsbad Battered Families Shelter; Children, Youth and 
Families; Faith, Hope and Love Foundation; local churches, Carlsbad Municipal Schools, and other 
agencies in the community. 

2023 was a very active year for CTHHS.  We have had seven (7) families in our five transitional homes.  
We provided 8,369 nights of shelter for eleven (11) adults and twenty-three children at a 100% 
occupancy rate. Unfortunately, our resources are not adequate to meet the needs of our community. As 
soon as one of the transitional houses becomes vacant and available , we always have multiple families 
waiting on a home to be available. 

We continue to depend heavily on our volunteer mentors to assist with managing the needs of our 
clients in Transitional Housing.  We have several single parents residing in our Transitional Housing 
program that have obtained and are maintaining sole custody of their children.  The children are 
receiving additional resources with regard to health and education that they otherwise would not have.  



Carlsbad Transitional Housing and Homeless Shelter 
502 S. Halagueno St., Carlsbad, NM  88220  
Phone:  (575)200-3095 Email:  team@cthhs.org 
 

Board of Directors: 
Lee Post, President—Andrea Kelly, Vice President—Jenny Sims, Secretary/Treasurer 

Rod Hurst—Chito Aguilar—Mike Owens—Brian McGonagill—Crystal Jones—Sarah Jones 
Maaike Thomas—Jeannie Watson 

 

In June of 2016, CTHHS constructed an eight-room emergency shelter for individuals and families; each 
room contains four beds allowing us to house up to thirty-two people. This facility is  the only one of its 
kind in Carlsbad and is utilized nightly by many, including the working homeless who simply cannot 
afford the high cost of motel rooms or an apartment in our area.  

In 2023 our Emergency Shelter assisted 96 clients with safe, sanitary shelter. This was 2,723 nights of 
shelter. The clients of the Emergency Shelter were offered a variety of resources for food, clothing, 
transportation, and a myriad of other services.  The resource network that CTHHS is part of allows for 
clients to be assessed and assisted on multiple levels and they are afforded a robust level of care as a 
result.  In addition to providing shelter, we also assist those in need with information on affordable 
housing options in our area, employment opportunities and referral services for necessities like food 
and clothing. We also offer the shelter clients, as well as the pedestrian traffic we service, other 
resources such as postal service, access to the internet and telephone usage to assist with job searches, 
obtaining federal and state assistance and making personal care appointments. The Shelter provided 
community support for 1,413 walk-in clients. 

The success of our efforts to combat homelessness in our community would not be possible without the 
funding granted from the United Way and the City of Carlsbad.  We are so very grateful to be partnered 
with such generous organizations and we greatly appreciate everything our partnering organizations do 
to assist us in our mission. 

As we look toward 2024-2025, we anticipate the need to do several maintenance upgrades to our aging 
properties and expand our staff to include a Support Specialist to assist with the day-to-day activities of 
both Transitional Housing and the Emergency Shelter. 

Our request for the coming year to the City of Carlsbad is $60,000.00. 

  









                        

CARLSBAD POLICE DEPARTMENT 
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

 

Shane Skinner, Chief of Police   Eddie Duarte, Patrol Cpt.  Jessie Rodriguez, Special Operations Cpt. 
    Form 03/16 

 

 

 
TO:  Wendy Austin   
 
FROM: Chief Shane Skinner  
 
DATE: 03-19-2024   
 
SUBJECT:  Issuance of $25,000 to the Pecos Valley Drug Task Force  
 

 
Mrs. Austin, 
 
I am humbly requesting the issuance of $25,000 by the City of Carlsbad to the Pecos 
Valley Drug Task Force.  They currently operate their task force on an approximate 
annual budget of $388,000.  Those funds are federal grant initiative monies and can 
only be spent in specific manners to include some overtime, contingency funds and 
training.   
 
As you know, the Carlsbad Police Department has a long-standing participation in 
the multi-jurisdiction task force as the Eddy County area along with the entire state 
of New Mexico being federally declared a high intensity drug trafficking area.  We 
currently dedicate three (3) full-time officers, one Sergeant and two Corporals, to 
be assigned to the Pecos Valley Drug Task Force.  Eddy County is the other major 
contributor as they currently have 4 full-time officers assigned to the drug task 
force.   
 
I have prior experience in overseeing a drug task force in New Mexico and am 
extremely familiar with the funding processes and constraints that come along with 
the use of federal grant monies.  The Pecos Valley Drug Task Force was nationally 
recognized for their outstanding efforts last year.  We continue to lead our state in 
many statistical categories and have an unblemished reputation amongst our federal 
law enforcement partners such as the Drug Enforcement Administration, the Bureau 
of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, Homeland 
Security Investigations and the United States Marshals Service.  The Pecos Valley 
Drug Task Force has obtained an amazingly high rate of federal prosecution for our 
local criminals which has translated to those undesired elements being removed 
from our community for a long period of time. 
 
The Eddy County Sheriff’s Office and I have agreed that our agencies have been 
called upon to contribute to the operational demands of the Pecos Valley Drug Task 
Force.  It is long overdue and this task force contributes directly the suppression of 
drug trafficking and distribution in the city of Carlsbad and Eddy County.  I think our 



                        

CARLSBAD POLICE DEPARTMENT 
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

 

Shane Skinner, Chief of Police   Eddie Duarte, Patrol Cpt.  Jessie Rodriguez, Special Operations Cpt. 
    Form 03/16 

 

contribution of funds, which would be matched by the Eddy County Sheriff’s Office, 
would help assist the Pecos Valley Drug Task Force in carrying out their operations 
in the successful manner they have been to present date.  These funds would be 
put to the good use of helping apprehend drug traffickers and dismantling of drug 
trafficking organizations.   
 
I would also humbly request that we continue to issue $25,000 of operational 
funding, to be matched by the Eddy County Sheriff’s Office, on an annual basis until 
further notice or at which time the Carlsbad Police Department might choose not to 
be a participant in the Pecos Valley Drug Task Force in the future.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Chief of Police 







 
 

 
 

                                     
 
 
 

   
March 11, 2024 
 
Honorable Mayor Rick Lopez and City Councilors, Windy Austin City Administrator 
City of Carlsbad, 
PO Box 1569 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88221-1569 
 
Re: FY 2024-25 Budget Request for SNMCAC Senior Citizens Program 
 
Dear Mayor Lopez, City Councilors, Wendy Austin 
 
On behalf of the board of directors, I want to thank you all for your continued support for the 
SNMCAC Senior Citizens Program as well as, for the consideration of our application for funding. In 
preparing this request, we are reminded, of our common interest, which is to provide services to meet 
the basic needs of our senior citizens in our community and avoid hunger and/or malnutrition. 
  

  
~ STATEMENT OF NEED ~ 

 
On behalf of Southeast NM Community Action Corporation’s (SNMCAC) Senior Citizens Program, we hereby 
submit this request for funding $60,000. The money requested is to help offset our budget shortage due to the 
high cost of food and maintenance and repairs on our vehicles that we use daily to transport seniors and for daily 
delivery of meals.  Demand for program services has increased by 12%, along with the cost of operating the 
program. We are now serving over 100 congregate clients daily and client donation are way down. Year to date 
we have served 430 unduplicated clients in the congregate setting and 22,352 meals, 342 homebound clients 
were served and 48,834 meals were delivered in 2023. We have implemented an additional route for 
transportation services to bring clients to and from home to the Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center as some of them 
no longer drive due to the traffic and are afraid to drive. 
To ensure that service delivery continues in Eddy County, local government and community funding is 
encouraged as a demonstration of support, commitment and good faith.  
 
 

 
~ FUNDING CHALLENGES ~ 

 
 Budget is based on projected units of service  
 Reimbursed for units served – but not at full cost. 
 Not necessarily reimbursed for exceeding projected unit 
 Funding regulations set forth by the Older Americans Act do not allow SNMCAC to charge for 

services; however, they do allow donations from those who can afford to contribute. Services 
are free to individuals 60 and over regardless of income. 

 Extremely high food cost. 
 

SSoouutthheeaasstt  NNMM  
CCoommmmuunniittyy  AAccttiioonn  CCoorrppoorraattiioonn  

1915 San Jose Boulevard 
Carlsbad, NM  88220-5462 

Phone 575-887-3939       
Fax 575-887-6357 







 

 

LaVern Shan 
CMS Deputy Superintendent 
408 N. Canyon 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
575-234-3300 

 
 

Carlsbad Municipal Schools 
 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
The Carlsbad Municipal School District has spent the year 2023-2024 setting a new strategic 
plan in cooperation with the Carlsbad community. The driving values and beliefs that have 
shaped the strategic plan and priorities are as follows: 
 

• A courageous community designs a school system that equally values essential work and 
skills college readiness. 

• Creativity, instructional risk-taking, and collaboration is a daily part of school life. 

• Success is achieved through the application of learning, not through taking tests. 

• Student interests are a critical component of instruction design. 

• Partnerships with families, local businesses, the Carlsbad community, and regional 
industries are crucial for the success of our students and teachers. 

 
As such, we have embarked on setting strategic priorities for the district based on the following 
mission: To challenge and inspire students to develop the skills and aptitudes necessary to 
make a living, succeed in post-secondary education, and positively impact their world. 
 
 
GOALS 
 

1. Increase student engagement in school as evidenced by increased graduation rate and 
afterschool program attendance. 

2. Decrease truancy and dropouts as evidence by attendance rate increases and increase 
in graduation rate. 

3. Expand opportunities for children to participate in Summer Programs. 
 
 



Budget Request Fiscal Year (2024-2025) 
 
To assist in meeting the goals outlined above (not all district goals are listed), the Carlsbad 
Municipal Schools is requesting the following budget amounts. It is understood that the City of 
Carlsbad provides services to residents and children of Carlsbad, NM. The requested budgeted 
amounts are intended to supplement existing initiatives in Carlsbad Schools and are not 
intended to supplement any existing City expenditures (i.e., Crossing Guards, School Resource 
Officers, etc.) 
 
REQUESTS 
 
 
City of Carlsbad Natatorium Agreement 
 
$13,000 
 
 
Youth Citizenship Program (Character Counts) 
 
$7,000 
 
 
After School Tutoring (Flow-Through) 
 
$ 30,000 
 
 
Summer Recreation Program 
 
 $15,000 
 
 






	Agenda
	Budget Committee Meeting Minutes
	Outside Agencies Requests
	Affirming Heart Victim Services
	Boys & Girls Club
	Carlsbad Battered Families Shelter
	Carlsbad Chamber-Retirement
	Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce
	Carlsbad Community Coalition-Teen Court
	Carlsbad Community of Hope Center
	Carlsbad MainStreet
	Carlsbad Transitional Housing & Homeless Shelter
	Pecos Valley Drug Taskforce
	SENMEDD
	Southeast NM Community Action Corporation
	Carlsbad Municipal Schools




